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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORIDA

CASE NO. 22-MJ-8332-BER

IN RE SEALED SEARCH WARRANT

/

NOTICE OF FILING OF REDACTED SEARCH WARRANT AFFIDAVIT
AND REDACTED EX PARTE MEMORANDUM OF LAW
CONCERNING PROPOSED REDACTIONS

The United States gives notice that, in compliance with the Court’s August 25, 2022
Order To Unseal, Docket Entry (“D.E.”) 94, it hereby files the redacted version of the search
warrant affidavit, submitted in support of the search warrant signed and approved by the
Court on August 5, 2022. The redactions were previously submitted for the Court’s review
and approved by the Court’s August 25, 2022 Order (DE89-1; DE94).

In addition, this notice includes a redacted copy of the government’s Sealed, Ex Parte
Memorandum of Law Concerning Proposed Redactions, filed on August 25, 2022, along with
Exhibit B to that Memorandum, a redacted chart explaining the government’s proposed
redactions—both of which the Court ordered unsealed on August 26, 2022. Exhibit A to that
filing consists of the proposed redactions to the affidavit, which accompanies this Notice in
its final, redacted form.

Respectfully submitted,

/s Juan Antonio Gonzalez
JUAN ANTONIO GONZALEZ
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY
Florida Bar No. 897388
99 NE 4th Street, 8th Floor
Miami, F1 33132

Tel: 305-961-9001
Email: juan.antonio.gonzalez@usdoj.gov
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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
FOR THE SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORTDA

IN THE MATTER OF THE SEARCH OF;
Case No.
LOCATIONS WITHIN THE PREMISES

TO BE SEARCHED IN ATTACHMENT A

e e L S T g

Filed Under Seal

AFFIDAVIT IN SLPPORT OF AN
APPLICATION UNDER RULE 41 FOR A
WARRANT TO SEARCH AND SEIZE

I,—, bewg fust duly swonu, Lereby depose aud state as follows:

INTRODLUCTION AND AGENT BACKGROUND

I The governmeni is conducting s crinunal mvestigation concenung the nuproper
removal and storage of classified information m wanthorized spaces, as well as the unlawiul
concealment or renoval of govenunent records. The mvestigation began as a result of a referral
the Uwted States National Arcluves and Records Adimuistration (NARA) sent to the United
Stares Depariment of Jushice (DOJ) on February 9. 2022, Lereinafter, “WARA Referral,”™ The
NARA Refemal stated that on Janusary 18. 2022, in accordance with the Presidential Records Act
(PRA). NARA recerved from the office of former President DONALLD J. TRUMP, Liereinafter
“FPOTUS,"” via representatives, (ilteen (15) boxes of records. hereinafier, the “FIFTEEN
BOXES™™ The FIFTEEN BOXES. which Lad been transported from the FRFOTUS property at
1100 S Ocean Blvd, Palin Beach, FL 33480, herewmafter, the “PREMISES.” a tesidence and elub
known as “Mar-a-Lago.” further described i Attachment A, were reported by NARA 1o contain.
among other things. highly classified docwnenis mtermingled wath otler recouds.

2. Afier an mihal review of the NARA Refensl. the Federal Burean of Investigation

(FBI} opened a crumnal investigaiion o, among other things. determine Low the documents with
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classificahon markmgs and records were rewsoved from the Whate House (or any other authonzed
location(s) for the slorage of clazsified materials) and cawe to be stored at the PREMISES:
detemmune whether the storage location(s) at the PREMISES were anthonzed locations for the
storage of classified infonunanon: determine whether any addilional classified docwents or
records 1nay have been stored i an unauthonzed location at the PREMISES or apother npknown
location, and whether they remain at any such location: and identify any persou(s) who may have
rewoved or retained classified informanion without authorizalion and/or in an unautherized space.
3. The FBI's investigation has established that docwunents bearing elassification
markings, which appear to cantain Mational Defense Information (NDI), were awoug ihe

tnaterials coutaied m the FIFTEEN BOXES and were siared at the PREMISES in an

unauthorized location.

- Further, there 15 probable cause to believe that additional decwments that contam
classified NDI or that are Presidential records subject to record retention requirements cwrrently
remain a1 the PREMISES. Tlere is also probable cause 1o believe that evidence of obstruction
will be found at the PREMISLES.

4. [ am a Special Agent with the FBI assigned 10 the Washmpgton Field Office

. Dunng this tine, I have received fraining

at 1he FBI Acadewy located at Quaniico. ¥irginia. specific to connterintelligence and espionage
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Based on my experience and training, I am familiar with efforts used to unlawfully collect, retain,
and disseminate sensitive government information, including classified NDI.

5. I make this affidavit in support of an application under Rule 41 of the Federal
Rules of Criminal Procedure for a warrant to search the premises known as 1100 S Ocean Blvd,
Palm Beach, FL. 33480, the “PREMISES,” as further described in Attachment A, for the things
described in Attachment B.

6. Based upon the following facts, there is probable cause to believe that the locations
to be searched at the PREMISES contain evidence, contraband, fruits of crime, or other items
illegally possessed in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 793(e), 1519, or 2071.

SOURCE OF EVIDENCE

7. The facts set forth in this affidavit are based on my personal knowledge,
knowledge obtained during my participation in this investigation, and information obtained from
other FBI and U.S. Government personnel. Because this affidavit is submitted for the limited
purpose of establishing probable cause in support of the application for a search warrant, it does
not set forth each and every fact that I, or others, have learned during the course of this
investigatton.

STATUTORY AUTHORITY AND DEFINITIONS

8. Under 18 U.S.C. § 793(e), “[w]hoever having unauthorized possession of, access
to, or control over any document . . . or information relating to the national defense which
information the possessor has reason to believe could be used to the injury of the United States or
to the advantage of any foreign nation, willfully communicates, delivers, transmits or causes to be
communicated, delivered, or transmitted” or attempts to do or causes the same “to any person not

entitled to receive it, or willfully retains the same and fails to deliver it to the officer or employee
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of the United States entitled to receive it” shall be fined or imprisoned not more than ten years, or
both.

9. Under Executive Order 13526, information in any form may be classified if'it: (1)
is owned by, produced by or for, or is under the control of the United States Government; (2) falls
within one or more of the categories set forth in the Executive Order [Top Secret, Secret, and
Confidential]; and (3) is classified by an original classification authority who determines that its
unauthorized disclosure reasonably could be expected to result in damage to the national security.

10.  Where such unauthorized disclosure could reasonably result in damage to the
national security, the information may be classified as “Confidential” and must be properly
safeguarded. Where such unauthorized disclosure could reasonably result in serious damage to
the national security, the information may be classified as “Secret” and must be properly
safeguarded. Where such unauthorized disclosure could reasonably result in exceptionally grave
damage to the national security, the information may be classified as “Top Secret” and must be
properly safeguarded.

11.  Sensitive Compartmented Information (SCI) means classified information
concerning or derived from intelligence sources, methods, or analytical processes, which is
required to be handled within formal access control systems.

12.  Special Intelligence, or “SI,” is an SCI control system designed to protect technical
and intelligence information derived from the monitoring of foreign communications signals by
other than the intended recipients. The SI control system protects SI-derived information and
information relating to SI activities, capabilities, techniques, processes, and procedures.

13.  HUMINT Control System, or “HCS,” is an SCI control system designed to protect

intelligence information derived from clandestine human sources, commonly referred to as
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“human intelligence.” The HCS control system protects human intelligence-derived information
and information relating to human intelligence activities, capabilities, techniques, processes, and
procedures.

14.  Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Act, or “FISA,” is a dissemination control
designed to protect intelligence information derived from the collection of information authorized
under the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Act by the Foreign Intelligence Surveillance Court, or
“FISC.”

15.  Classified information may be marked as “Not Releasable to Foreign
Nationals/Governments/US Citizens,” abbreviated “NOFORN,” to indicate information that may
not be released in any form to foreign governments, foreign nationals, foreign organizations, or
non-U.S. citizens without permission of the originator.

16.  Classified information may be marked as “Originator Controlled,” abbreviated
“ORCON.” This marking indicates that dissemination beyond pre-approved U.S. entities requires
originator approval.

17.  Classified information of any designation may be shared only with persons
determined by an appropriate United States Government official to be eligible for access, and who
possess a “need to know.” Among other requirements, in order for a person to obtain a security
clearance allowing that person access to classified United States Government information, that
person is required to and must agree to properly protect classified information by not disclosing
such information to persons not entitled to receive it, by not unlawfully removing classified
information from authorized storage facilities, and by not storing classified information in
unauthorized locations. If a person is not eligible to receive classified information, classified

information may not be disclosed to that person. In order for a foreign government to receive
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access to classified information, the originating United States agency must determine that such
release is appropriate.

18.  Pursuant to Executive Order 13526, classified information contained on automated
information systems, including networks and telecommunications systems, that collect, create,
communicate, compute, disseminate, process, or store classified information must be maintained
in a manner that: (1) prevents access by unauthorized persons; and (2) ensures the integrity of the
information.

19. 32 C.F.R. Parts 2001 and 2003 regulate the handling of classified information.
Specifically, 32 C.F.R. § 2001.43, titled “Storage,” regulates the physical protection of classified
information. This section prescribes that Secret and Top Secret information “shall be stored in a
[General Services Administration]-approved security container, a vault built to Federal Standard
(FHD STD) 832, or an open storage area constructed in accordance with § 2001.53.” It also
requires periodic inspection of the container and the use of an Intrusion Detection System, among
other things.

20.  Under 18 U.S.C. § 1519:

Whoever knowingly alters, destroys, mutilates, conceals, covers up, falsifies, or
makes a false entry in any record, document, or tangible object with the intent to
impede, obstruct, or influence the investigation or proper administration of any
matter within the jurisdiction of any department or agency of the United States or

any case filed under title 11, or in relation to or contemplation of any such matter
or case, shall be fined under this title, imprisoned not more than 20 years, or both.

21.  Under 18 U.S.C. § 2071:

(a) Whoever willfully and unlawfully conceals, removes, mutilates, obliterates, or
destroys, or attempts to do so, or, with intent to do so takes and carries away any
record, proceeding, map, book, paper, document, or other thing, filed or deposited
with any clerk or officer of any court of the United States, or in any public office,
or with any judicial or public officer of the United States, shall be fined under this
title or imprisoned not more than three years, or both.
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(b) Whoever, having the custody of any such record, proceeding, map, book,
document, paper, or other thing, willfully and unlawfully conceals, removes,
mutilates, obliterates, falsifies, or destroys the same, shall be fined under this title
or imprisoned not more than three years, or both; and shall forfeit his office and be
disqualified from holding any office under the United States. As used in this
subsection, the term “office” does not include the office held by any person as a
retired officer of the Armed Forces of the United States.

22. Under the PRA, 44 U.S.C. § 2201:

(2) The term “Presidential records” means documentary materials, or any
reasonably segregable portion thereof, created or received by the President, the
President’s immediate staff, or a unit or individual of the Executive Office of the
President whose function is to advise or assist the President, in the course of
conducting activities which relate to or have an effect upon the carrying out of the
constitutional, statutory, or other official or ceremonial duties of the President.
Such term—

(A) includes any documentary materials relating to the political activities of
the President or members of the President’s staff, but only if such
activities relate to or have a direct effect upon the carrying out of
constitutional, statutory, or other official or ceremonial duties of the
President; but

(B) does not include any documentary materials that are (1) official records
of an agency (as defined in section 552(e) of title 5, United States
Code; (i1) personal records; (iii) stocks of publications and stationery;
or (iv) extra copies of documents produced only for convenience of
reference, when such copies are clearly so identified.

23. Under 44 U.S.C. § 3301(a), government “records” are defined as:

all recorded information, regardless of form or characteristics, made or received by
a Federal agency under Federal law or in connection with the transaction of public
business and preserved or appropriate for preservation by that agency or its
legitimate successor as evidence of the organization, functions, policies, decisions,
procedures, operations, or other activities of the United States Government or
because of the informational value of data in them.

PROBABLE CAUSE

NARA Referral

24.  On February 9, 2022, the Special Agent in Charge of NARA’s Office of the
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Inspector General sent the NARA Referral via email to DOJ. The NARA Referral stated that
according to NARA’s White House Liaison Division Director, a preliminary review of the
FIFTEEN BOXES indicated that they contained “newspapers, magazines, printed news articles,
photos, miscellaneous print-outs, notes, presidential correspondence, personal and post-
presidential records, and ‘a lot of classified records.” Of most significant concern was that highly
classified records were unfoldered, intermixed with other records, and otherwise unproperly [sic]
identified.”

25. On February 18, 2022, the Archivist of the United States, chief administrator for
NARA, stated in a letter to Congress’s Committee on Oversight and Reform Chairwoman The
Honorable Carolyn B. Maloney, “NARA had ongoing communications with the representatives of
former President Trump throughout 2021, which resulted in the transfer of 15 boxes to NARA in
January 2022 . ... NARA has identified items marked as classified national security information
within the boxes.” The letter also stated that, “[b]ecause NARA identified classified information
in the boxes, NARA staff has been in communication with the Department of Justice.” The letter
was made publicly available at the following uniform resource locator (URL):

https://www.archives.gov/files/foia/ferriero-response-to-02.09.2022-maloney-

letter.02.18.2022 .pdt. On February 18, 2022, the same day, the Save America Political Action

Committee (PAC) posted the following statement on behalf of FPOTUS: “The National Archives
did not ‘find’ anything, they were given, upon request, Presidential Records in an ordinary and
routine process to ensure the preservation of my legacy and in accordance with the Presidential

Records Act . ...” An image of this statement is below.
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Boxes Containing Documents Were Transported from the White House 10 Mar-a-Lago
30, According to a CBS Mianu arvicle 1tled “Moving Trucks Spotted At Mar-a-Lago,”
published Monday, January 18, 2021, at least two moving tnicks were observed al the PREMISES

on Jauuary 18, 2021,

Lt
[
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39 Onior about May 6, 2021, NARA made a requesi for the missing PRA records and

contumed to make requests until approximately late December 2021 when NARA was mformed

rwelve boxes were found and ready for relneval ar the PREMISES. _
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The FIFTEEN BOXES Provided o NARA Contain Classified Infortation
A7, From May 16-18, 2022. FB] agents conducted a prelinunary veview of the

FIFTEEN BOXES provided to NARA and identified documents with classilication markings in
fourteen of the FIFTEEN BOXES. A prelininary mage of the documents with ¢lassification
tmarkings revealed the following approximate munbers: 184 unique documents bearing
classification markings, including 67 documents warked as CONFIDENTIAL, 92 docwuneuts
narked as SECRET. and 25 documents warked as TOP SECRET. Furniler. the FBI agents
observed inarkings reflecting the following compartments/dissemination controls: HCS, FISA,
ORCON. NOFORN. and SI. Dased on my training and experience, I know that docuwments
classified at these levels typically contany NDI. Several of the docuents also contaived what

appears to be FPOTUS s handwritten uotes.

4
ha

Za
o

17



Case 9:22-mj-08332-BER Document 102-1 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/26/2022 Page 18 of

38




Case 9:22-mj-08332-BER Document 102-1 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/26/2022 Page 19 of

w
o

52,

L the second such letter, whiel: 15 anached as

Exlubit 1, FFOTUS COUNSEL 1 asked DOJ to consider a few “principles.” which wmelude
FPOTUS COUNSEL 1's claim that a President Lias absolute amhortty to declassify docwunents. In
ilus letter, FPOTUS COUNSEL | requested. among other things. that “DOJ provide this letter to
any judicial officer who is asked to rule on any motion perfanung to 1lus wveshpation, of on ANy
application made in connection willi any mvestigative request concerning this nvestigation.”

53 I am aware of an article published n Breithart on May 5. 2022, available at

Ltips - wyww.brettbart.com polities 2022 03 U35 docunents-iay-a-lago-inarked-classiied-were-

alreacdhy-declussifled-kash-patel-savs . which states that Kash Patel, who 1s deseribed as 2 former

top FPOTUS aduinistration official, characterized as “muisleadiog™ reports in olher uews
organizations that NARA bad found classified matenals among records that FPOTUS provided to

NARA from Mar-a-Lago. Patel alleged that such reports were uiisleading because FOTUS had
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54,

61,  Oo hwe 8, 2022, DOJ CGUNSEL sent FPOTLUS COUNSEL 1 a letter, which
reiterated that the PREMISES ave not authorized to store classified information and requested the
preservation of thie STORAGE ROOM and boxes that had been moved frow the Wlnie House o
ilie PREMISES. Specifically. he letter stated in relevant part:

As I previousiy indicated to you. Mar-a-Lago does not clude a secure location
authotized for the storage of classified infonmation. As such, it appears that since the time
classified docmnents— were removed
from the seciwe facilities at the White House and moved to Mar-a-I.ago on or aronnd
January 20, 2021, they have not been handled W an appropriate manner or stored (o an
appropniate location. Accordingly, we ask that Hic roowm at Mar-a-Lago where 1lie
docwments had been stored be secured and that all of the boxes that were moved Gom the
White House to Mar-a-Lago {along with any otber items w that room) be preserved i that
room 16 their current condition wtil Auther notice.

LR LLS.C ¢ 793(e) does not use fhe wnn “classified wformation.” but rather criminalizes the unlaw{ul retention of
“mfommation relating to the national defense,” The stanate does not define ~*infermmalion related (o the national
defense,” but courds Lave construed it broadly. See Gorin v, Drnted Stoter, 31200519, 28 (194 1) Chalding thar the
plrase “informiation relarnig to the national defense™ as nsed in rhe Espionage Act is a “generic concept of hroad
commatations. refermug to the mibitary and naval establishisents and the related activities of national preparedoess™),
In sddition. the infomuaton st be “elosely held ™ by the U35, povenunent. See Lirved Seares v. Sgurflacore. 12
F.3d 542, 579 {4th Cir. 20000 {[[nismmaton made pablic by the govermment as well as infortation never protected
by the govenunent is not natiopal defense mformation.™): Livied Stares v Morison. 834 F 24 1057, 1071-72 (4rh Cir,
1985). Certain conrts have also hield that the disclosure of the documents must be poteutially duuaging (o fag United
States, See Movizon. 844 F 2d at 107172

22
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Ou June 9, 2022, FPOTUS COUNSEL 1 sent an email to DOJ COUNSEL. stating. *I write to

ackuowledpe receipn of this lerer.”
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There is Probable Cause (o Believe Thar Documenss Containing Classified NDI and
Presidential Records Remain ar the Premises
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77, Based upon this investigations. I believe that the STORAGE ROOM, FPOTUS s
residential suite, Pine Hall. the “45 Office.” aud other spaces within the PREMISES are not
currently authorized locations for the storage of classified informatiou or NDIL. Similarly, based
upon this investigation, [ do not believe thal any spaces within the PREMISES have been
authonzed for the storage of classified informanon at least since the end of FPOTUS s
Presidential Adminishation on Jamuary 20, 2021,

78. As descnibed above. evidence of the SUBJECT OFFENSES Lias beeu stored 1n

multiple locations at 1he PREMISES. _

Accordingly, this aflidavit seeks amnbonzation to search the 45 O(fice™ aud all storage rooms and
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any other rooms or locations where boxes or records may be stored within the PREMISES, as
further described in Attachment A. The PREMISES is currently closed to club members for the
summer; however, as specified in Attachment A, if at the time of the search, there are areas of the
PREMISES being occupied, rented, or used by third parties, and not otherwise used or available

to be used by FPOTUS and his staff, the search would not include such areas.

CONCLUSION

79.  Based on the foregoing facts and circumstances, I submit that probable cause exists
to believe that evidence, contraband, fruits of crime, or other items illegally possessed in violation
18 U.S.C. §§ 793(e), 2071, or 1519 will be found at the PREMISES. Further, I submit that this
affidavit supports probable cause for a warrant to search the PREMISES described in Attachment
A and seize the items described in Attachment B.

REQUEST FOR SEALING

80. It is respectfully requested that this Court issue an order sealing, until further order
of the Court, all papers submitted in support of this application, including the application and
search warrant. [ believe that sealing this document is necessary because the items and
information to be seized are relevant to an ongoing investigation and the FBI has not yet identified
all potential criminal confederates nor located all evidence related to its investigation. Premature
disclosure of the contents of this affidavit and related documents may have a significant and
negative impact on the continuing investigation and may severely jeopardize its effectiveness by
allowing criminal parties an opportunity to flee, destroy evidence (stored electronically and

otherwise), change patterns of behavior, and notify criminal confederates.

30
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SEARCH PROCEDURES FOR HANDLING POTENTIAL ATTORNEY-CLIENT
PRIVILEGED INFORMATION

The following procedures will be followed at the time of the search in order to protect
against disclosures of attorney-client privileged material:

81.  These procedures will be executed by: (a) law enforcement personnel conducting
this investigation (the “Case Team”™); and (b) law enforcement personnel not participating in the
investigation of the matter, who will search the “45 Office” and be available to assist in the event
that a procedure involving potentially attorney-client privileged information is required (the
“Privilege Review Team”).

82.  The Case Team will be responsible for searching the TARGET PREMISES.
However, the Privilege Review Team will search the “45 Office” and conduct a review of the seized
materials from the “45 Office” to identify and segregate documents or data containing potentially
attorney-client privileged information.

83.  If the Privilege Review Team determines the documents or data are not potentially
attorney-client privileged, they will be provided to the law-enforcement personnel assigned to the
investigation. If at any point the law-enforcement personnel assigned to the investigation
subsequently identify any data or documents that they consider may be potentially attorney-client
privileged, they will cease the review of such identified data or documents and refer the materials
to the Privilege Review Team for further review by the Privilege Review Team.

84.  If the Privilege Review Team determines that documents are potentially attorney-
client privileged or merit further consideration in that regard, a Privilege Review Team attorney
may do any of the following: (a) apply ex parte to the court for a determination whether or not the

documents contain attorney-client privileged material; (b) defer seeking court intervention and
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coutinve to keep Iie documents imaccessible to law-enforcement personnel assigued to the
mvestigation: or {¢) disclose the dociouents to the poteutial privilege hiolder, request Ihe privilege
haolder to stare whether the potential privilege holder asserls attoruey-clieut privilege as to any
docwnents, iucluding requesting a particnlarized privilege log, aud seek a ruling from the conrt
regarding any attomey-client privilege claims as to which lbe Prnvilege Review Team and the

privilege-holder cauncl reach agreement.

Respectiully subuutied.

Special Agend
¥Federal Bureau of Tnvestigation

Subscribed and sworn before me by
telephone [%g.]&.ﬂupp} or other reliable electronic

means this -2 dammt mg:r
%
HDN_ HRUE‘F F REINHART
UNITED STATES MAGISTRATE TUDGE
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Fia Flectronic Maii

Jay 1. Bratl. Esquire

{Chiel

Countenintelhgence & Export Control Section
National Security Division

.5, Department ol Justice

930 Pennsylvania, Avenoe, NOW.
Washinglon, [, 20530

Re: Presidential Records Investigation
Dear lay:
1 write an behalt of President Donald ). Trumip regarding the abave-reterenced matter.

Public trust in the government is low. At such lithes, adherence 0 the rules and long-sanding
policies 15 essential. President Donald ). Trump is a leader of the Republican Pany. The
Department of Justice (I0OT), as part of the Execcutive Branch, is under the control of a President
from the opposite party. [t is critical. given that dynamie, that every cilort 15 made to ensure that
actions by DOJ that may touch upon the formaer President, or his close associates. do not involve
palitics.

There have been public reports about an fmvestigation by DOJ in Presidential Records
purportedly marked as classified among materials that were once in the White House and
unknowwingly included amaong the boxes hrought to Mar-a-Lago by the movers, LU is important o
cmphasize that when a request was made {or the documents by the National Archives and Records
Adminisiration {(INARA), President Twmp readily and volumarly agreed w thew transfor o
NARA. The communications regarding the transfer of boxes to NARA were hriendly. open, and
straightforward. President Trump voluntarily ordered that the boxes be provided to NARA. Mo
legal objection was asserted ahout the transfer, Wo concerns were raised abouws the contents of the
hoxes. It was a volunlary and open process.

Untortunately. the good faith demonstrated by President Trump was nol matched once the boxes
arrived al NARA. Leaks followed. And. once 13)] got involved. the leaks continued. Leaks about
any investigation are concorning. Leaks about an investigation that involve the residence of’ a
Former President who is still active on the national political scene are particularly troubling.
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It is important to note a few bedrock principles:
(1) A President Has Absolute Authority To Declassify Documents.

Under the U.S. Constitution, the President is vested with the highest level of authority when it
comes to the classification and declassification of documents. See U.S. Const., Art. I, § 2 (“The
President [is] Commander in Chief of the Army and Navy of the United States[.]”). His
constitutionally-based authority regarding the classification and declassification of documents is
unfettered. See Navy v. Egan, 484 U.S. 518, 527 (1988) (“[The President’s] authority to classify
and control access to information bearing on national security . . . flows primarily from this
constitutional investment of power in the President and exists quite apart from any explicit
congressional grant.”).

(2) Presidential Actions Involving Classified Documents Are Not Subject To Criminal
Sanction.

Any attempt to impose criminal liability on a President or former President that involves his actions
with respect to documents marked classified would implicate grave constitutional separation-of-
powers issues. Beyond that, the primary criminal statute that governs the unauthorized removal
and retention of classified documents or material does not apply to the President. That statute
provides, in pertinent part, as follows:

Whoever, being an officer, employee, contractor, or consultant of
the United States, and, by virtue of his office, employment, position,
or contract, becomes possessed of documents or materials
containing classified information of the United States, knowingly
removes such documents or materials without authority and with the
intent to retain such documents or materials at an unauthorized
location shall be fined under this title or imprisoned for not more
than five years, or both.

18 U.S.C. § 1924(a). An element of this offense, which the government must prove beyond a
reasonable doubt, is that the accused is “an officer, employee, contractor, or consultant of the
United States.” The President is none of these. See Free Enter. Fund v. Pub. Co. Acct. Oversight
Bd., 561 U.S. 477, 497-98 (2010) (citing U.S. Const., Art. 11, § 2, cl. 2) (“The people do not vote
for the ‘Officers of the United States.’”); see also Melcher v. Fed. Open Mkt. Comm., 644 F. Supp.
510,518-19(D.D.C. 1986), aff"d, 836 F.2d 561 (D.C. Cir. 1987) (“[a]n officer of the United States
can only be appointed by the President, by and with the advice and consent of the Senate, or by a
court of law, or the head of a department. A person who does not derive his position from one of
these sources is not an officer of the United States in the sense of the Constitution.”). Thus, the
statute does not apply to acts by a President.
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{3) DOJ Mast Be Insulated From Political Influence,

According o the Inspector General of DOJ. one of" the top challenges facing the Department is the
public pereeption that DOJ is influenced by politics. The report found that “{o[ne importam
strategy that can build public trost in the Depariment s to ensure adhercnee w policies and
procedures desipned to protect DO from accusations of political influence or partial applicalion
of the law.™ See hups:iioigjustice sovieporsop-nanavement-and-periormange-challerogs-
facing-deparimeni-justiec-2021 (last visited May 235, 20223, We request that 1] adhere o long-
standing policies and procedures regarding communications between DOJ and the White ouse
regarding pending imvestigative maticrs which are designed to prevent political influcnge in DO)J
decision-making.

{4) T Must Be Candid With Judges And Present Exculpatory Evidence.

Long-standing DI policy requires that 1200 attorneys be candid in representations made to
Judges. Pursuant to those policies. we request that 1O provide this lenter o any judicial officer
who is asked w rule on any moeton pertaining w this imvestigation. or on any application made in
comnection with ary investigative reguest concerning this imvesiigation.

The othicial palicy ot DOJ further requires that prosecutors present ¢xculpatory evidence to a grand
funy. Pursuant to that policy. we request that DOJ provide this letter to any arand jury considering
evidence in connection with this matler. or any grand jury asked to issue a subpoena for testimony
or documents in connection with this matter.

Thank vou for your attention to this reguest.

With best regards.

Yo fypcbn

b1 Fvan 'Gn:bran“

oo Marthew (. Olsen
Assistant Altomey General
National Security Division
Vio Klectromic Ml

'l
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ATTACHMENT A
Property to be searched
The premises to be searched, 1100 S Ocean Blvd, Palm Beach, FL 33480, is further
described as a resort, club, and residence located near the intersection of Southern Blvd and S
Ocean Blvd. It is described as a mansion with approximately 58 bedrooms, 33 bathrooms, on a
17-acre estate. The locations to be searched include the “45 Office,” all storage rooms, and all
other rooms or areas within the premises used or available to be used by FPOTUS and his staff
and in which boxes or documents could be stored, including all structures or buildings on the
estate. It does not include areas currently (i.e., at the time of the search) being occupied, rented,
or used by third parties (such as Mar-a-Largo Members) and not otherwise used or available to be

used by FPOTUS and his staff, such as private guest suites.
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ATTACHMENT B
Property to be seized
All physical documents and records constituting evidence, contraband, fruits of crime, or
other items illegally possessed in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§ 793, 2071, or 1519, including the
following:
a. Any physical documents with classification markings, along with any
containers/boxes (including any other contents) in which such documents are located, as
well as any other containers/boxes that are collectively stored or found together with the
aforementioned documents and containers/boxes;
b. Information, including communications in any form, regarding the
retrieval, storage, or transmission of national defense information or classified material;
¢. Any government and/or Presidential Records created between January
20, 2017, and January 20, 2021; or
d. Any evidence of the knowing alteration, destruction, or concealment of
any government and/or Presidential Records, or of any documents with classification

markings.
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COUR]
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF FLORITD

-~

CASE NO, 22-MJ-8332-BER

INRE SEALED SEARCH WARRANT
UNBDER SEAL
/

UNITED STATES' SEALED, EX PARTE MEMORANDUM OF LAW REGARTDING
PROPOSED REDACTIQONS

Pursvant to this Court's August 18 and August 22, 2022 orders, the United States
respectfully submits this sealed, ex parre memorandum of law seuting fonh the justifications
for its proposed redactions 10 the affidavit submitted to the Cowrt on August 5, 2022, in

" scpport of the government's application fora search warrant at @ property of former President
Donald I. Trump,  See Dockel Erries (“D.E."y [, 74, 80, For the reasons cxplained below,
the maternials the govemment marked [or redaction 1n the attached document must remain
sealed to prutect the safety and privacy of a significamt number of civiliap witnesses, in

-addition to law enforcement personnel, as well as to protect the wtegrity of the ongoing
nvestigation and to avold disclosure of grand jury material in viclation of the Federal Rules
of Crnminal Procedure.

Procedoral Backpround

On August 8, 2022, the Department of Tustice executed a search warrant, 1ssued by
this Count upon the requisite finding of probable cause, at the premises located at 1100 5.
Ocean Blvd., Palm Beach, Florida 3348(, a property of former President Trump  Given the

circumstances presented 0 this matter and the public inferest in transparency, and in the wake
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The Count found that disclosure of the Affidavit woold likely result in witnesses being
- “guickly and broadly identified over social media and other communication chaanels, which
could lead to them being harassed and intimidated ™ fd at 9. The Count gave "greal
weight” to “the significant likelihood that unscaling the Aflidawit would harm legitimate
privacy interests,” with disclosures potentially serving to “impede the gngoing myestigation
through gbstruction of justice and wirness intimidation or retaliation " fd. at 9-10. And the
Court found that the Affidavit contams “critically important and detaided investigative facts:
highly sensitive information about witnesses . . | specific investigative techniques; and
information required to be kept under sea: pursuamt 10 Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure
&ie),” the disclosure of which "would detrimentally affect this investigation and future
investigations,”  fd as 10, Fowever, noting that the wammant involves “matters of sipmficant
public concern,” ., the Coun concluded that "the present record'” does not "justffy] keeping
the ereire Aflldavit under seal,” id at 13 (emphasis added),
Argument

The Bedacied Matenals Must Bemain Unider Seal

As the Court has found, “{plrotecung the integrity and secrecy of an ongoing criminal
investipation is a well-recognized compelling governmental interest.”  DUE. BO at & {citing.
imter affa, United States v, Vuleati, 986 F 2d 708, 714 (11th Cir. 1993)).  Indeed, "[a]t the pre-

" indictment stage, the Government's nced 1o conceal the scope and direction of s
investipation, as well as its investigative sources and methods, 15 at its zenith,” D.E. 8J at
7-8 (ciung Blatock v. United Srates, 844 F 2d 1546, 1530 0.5(1 1th Cir. (988} Counse] for the

Intervenors have also acknowledged that certain ponions of the affidavit must likely reman
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al the former President's public confirmauon of the search and his representatives’ public
characterizations of the materials sought, the government moved to unseal the scarch
warrant, its attachments, and the Propermy Receipt summarizing materiais seized, and this
Court granted the government's monon. DE I, 41,

A number of news media organizations and other entities (the “Intervenors”) have
filed motions to unseal these and other materials associated with the search warrant, including
the affidavil. The government submstted s omnibus response o those motions on August

C 15,2022, DLE.39. The Coun conducted & hearing on August 18, 2022, at the conclusion
of which the Court directed the government to file under seal s proposed redactions [o the
aflidavit and alegal memorandum setting forth the fustifications tor the proposed redactions.
DE 74

In a subsequent order, the Coun noted that the government “has met its burden of
showing pood cause/a compelling interest that overrides any public interest in unsealing the
full contents of the Affidavit.™ DE. 8% at 12, In that order, the Couorl observed that the
obstruction and threat concemns raised by the govemment were “not hypothetical in this
case.” ff at®. Inparticular, the Court cited its prior finding of probable cause that a stawute
prohibiting obstruction of justice has been violated, and further relied upon the post-search
increase in specific threats of violence 1o wdemified FBI apents, overal] violent threats (o FBI

personngd, and the armed attack on the FBT office in Cincinnati. £ at 8.9,

——

_—— ot ——

' Based on the government’s and the Intervenors' agreemcnt that certain additional
documents {namely, the government's motion to seal, the Court's sealing order, and [wo
cover sheets) could be publicly released with minor redactions o prolect government
persunnel, the Count also ordered those documents released. DVE 74

2
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under seal to prowect information sauch as witness dentities and investigative sources and
methods.  Hrg Troat 35
The government has carefuly reviewed the atfidavit and has idenufied five categories
of information that must remain under seal 10 order o protect the safety of multiple civilian
witnesses whase mformation was included thronghout the affidavir and contribated to the
finding of probable cause, as well as the integrity of the ongoing wvestigation.  In the
attached chan. the government has idenufied each category that applies 1o information the
. government propnses 10 redact,  Some information (alls within more than ong calegory.
The categories, described further below, are (1} information from a broad range of civilian
witnesses who may be subject to "witness intimidation or retaliation,™ DLE. 80 at 9; {1
information regarding investigative avenues and technigues that could provide a roadmap for
- potential Ways 1o obstrucl the investigation, 7f. at 9-13; (3} information whose disclosure is
proh:bited under Rule &(¢) of the Federal Rules of Criminal Procedure {"Rule &(e)"), such as
grand jury subpoenas, testimony, and related matenal, . at 10, {4} information whose
disclosure could nsk the safety of law cnforcement personnel, wd. at %) and (5) Information
- whose disclosure could harm “legitimate privacy interests” of third paries, id
1. Witness Information
First and foremnst, the government must protect the identity of witnesses at Lhis stage
ot the investigation to ensure their safery.  As this Courn noted, if information relating to
wilnesses were disclosed, it is likely that even witnesses who are not expressly named inthe
Affidavit would be guickly and broadly identibied over social media and other communication

channels, which could lead 1o them being harassed and intimidated * DVLE. 80at9. Seealss,
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ez, Douglas O Co. of Cal. v, Perrol Stops Nw., 441 US. 211, 219 (1979) (describing the nsk that
“prospective witnesses would be hesitant to come forward voluntarily, knowing that those
against whom they testify would be aware of that testimony™); United Srares v, Sreinger, 626 F.

Supp. 2d 1231, 1235 (5.1D. Fla. 2009 (similar).

the affidavit could be used to identify many, if not all, of these witnesses.  For example, i

L‘h l
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If witnesses” idennuies are exposed, they could he subjected 1 harms including
retaliation, intimidation, or harassment, and cven threats to ther physical safety.  As the

Court has already noted, “these concerns ar¢ not hypothetical in this case” [J.E. 80 at 8
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_ Meanwhile, FBI agens who hawve been publicly identified in

comtection with this investigation have received repeated threats of violence from members
of the public.  Exposure of winesses' identities would likely ernde their irust in the
government's investigation, and it would almost centamny cirill aiker potentia! witnesses from
coming forward in this investigaiion and others,

2. lovestigation “Road Map"

As Judge Jordan explained in Srevnger, iF delails aboul an ongoing investigation are
prematurely disclosed, such disclosures “would compromise the investigation and might also
lead to the destruction of evidence.™ 620 F. Supp. 2d a1 1233 {citing Dougias Orf Co.| 441
U5 at 218-19), see also, o, Patel v Unrred Searey, No 9 19-MCZ1181, 2019 W, 4251269 at

_ *5 (5.10. Fla. Sept. 9, 2019) [agreeing with the government that disclosure of information
“would severely prejudice™ its investigation, including by “prematurely disclosing iis scope
and direction, subjects, and potential witnesses, and could result in the destrucuion of
evidence"), DLE. 80 at 9-t0 (disclosure of investigative “sources and methods™ "would
detrimentally affect s investigation and future investigations”).

Although the public is now aware thal the povernment executed a search warrant at
the premnises owned by the former President and seized documents marked as classitied, the
affidavit is replete with further details that would provide a roadmap for anyone intent gn
obstructing the investigation.  “Maximizing the (fovernment’s access 1o untainted facts

" inereases its abality 1o make a filly-informed prosccutive decision.™ DU 80 at 8.

For example., I
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Revealing this informauon could thus adversely impact the government’s pursuit of relevant
evidence !
Im addiion, vevealing this information could severely disadvantage the govemment as

it seeks further snformation from witnesses.  For example,

© Additionally, the Court has noted that disclosure of ceptain information pertaining to
physical aspects of the premises could negatively aftect the Secret Service's ability o carry out
its protective lunetions. D.E. 80 at 10, Although the Depantment of Justice is not in a
position at this (inwe (0 assess those potental harms, the informanon in the affidavit describing
physical aspects of the premizes [its within the category of information whose disclosure
would provide o “road map” of investigauve technigoes and avenues,
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These concerns are particularly compelling inthiscase.  As explained in the afMidavit,

In

short, the government has well-founded concerns that steps may be taken to frustrale or

otherwise interfere with this investigation if facts in the affidavit were prematurely discinsed.

Y
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3. Rule &€}

The afhidavit contains cerain information that must be kept under seal pursuant [0
Federal Rule of Crirminal Procedure 6fc) because it may disclose “a matier occurnng belore
the grand jury.”  Althgugh “Rule 6{e} does not draw a veil of secrecy over all matters
accurring in (e world that happen to be mvestigated by a grand jury,” it bars disclosure of
information that “would reveal sonsething about the grand jury's identity, investgation, or

deliberation, ™ Zahow v U8 Dept of Justree, 831 F 3d 523, 529 (D.C, Cir. 2018} {internal

quotations omiced)
|
3 ]
I
.|
N v
I
4. Salety of Law Epforcement Personnel

Minor but impaortant redactions are necessary to protoct the safety of law enlercement
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personnel.  See [DF. B at 3 {redactions in other materials “are appropriate ta protect the
dentity and personal safety of " an investigative agent).  Specilically, information in the

affidavit that would identify the affant, such asby name or through hiographical information,

see AFF 4, should remain under scal, - |

5. Privacy interests

As the Supreme Coun has long recogmized, premature disclosure of investigative
information creates a risk that " persons who are accused but exonerated™ may be “held up to
public ridicule.”  Dlonglas O4F Co. 441 U5, at 219, ser afoo, e.g., Steinger, 626 F, Supp. 2d at

1235 (disclosure of names of subjects and of maters being investigated “could have
devastating conseqguences for those persons who have been cleared of any misconduct, as well
as for those suill under investigation™} *  The government recognizes that the former
President has spoken publicly about this investigation and has said ih a public statement that

- he wishes for the affidavit to be disclosed in its eatirety, although the Court has noted that
“[n|either Former President Trump nor anyone clse purpoiting to be the owner of the

Premises has filed a pleading taking a position an the Intervenors’ Motion o Unseal.™  [E.

Protecting the identities of uncharged individuals 15 also consistent with government
Ccoungel’s professional responsibilities.  See Justice Manual § 9-27.760 ("Limitation on
ldentifying U'ncharged Third-Parties Publicly ™.
T Ser Perry Stein & Josh Dawsey, "Trump Wants Mar-a-Lago Aaffidavit Released, As Some
Ardes Ponder  Risk.™ Washingrann  Posr {Aug. 17, 2020,  owoilable ar
https 4 www washinolonpost.yamsnationai-security 7202208 16/ rump -mar-a-lago-

alidevi [

11
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80at 1.2,  Nevertheless, the affidavit contains additional information abour others that cou!d
harm these individuals' pnvacy and reputational interests if disclosed.

For example,

anc
For the reasons stated herein, the Court should maintain under seal the text the
government has marked for redaction.. The government defers ta the Coun to determme
whether the redactions are 50 exlensive that” release of the remainder of the aMdavil would
“result in a meaningless disclosure.” DLE. 80at 12, Should the Coun order disclosure of a
redacted version of the afflidavis, and if the Coun agrees with the govemment's proposed
redactions, the government will submit a jinal version ol 1he redacted afidavit for public

release.

In the interest of transparency, as well as the principle that limitanons on public access
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o judicial proceedings should be “narrowly (2ilored,” Giobe Newspaper Co. v Suporior Court,
457 .5 596, 807 (1982), the governmenl respectfully subrmits that cenain porions of this
fiing may be unscaled, including the introductory segment up through the first owo
parapraphs in the Argument section on page 4, is well as cenain text in the sections that
follow describing relevant provisions of law.  The government will submit a version of this
filing that «dentifies the portrons that can be publicly filed, along with its proposed redactions,
lortbwith.  And with the {ourts permission, the government will confer with counsel for the
former President as to whether counsel or the {ormer Prosident bas any obrection to unsealing
the letter [rom ¢ounsel included as Exhibit | to the affidavit.  Absent any such objection, the
. goverament supparts unsealing the letier,

Respectivlly subminted,

Fu Suan Ameovte Conrales

JUAN ANTONKIO GONZALLY

UNITED STATES ATTQRNEY

Florida Bar No. 8273R¥

e MF ath Steeet, Bth Floor

Miami, FL 33132

Tel: 305-961-.900]
Email: juan. antonioc.gonzalezfgusdo) gov

/s Jay 1. Bran
JAY 1. BRATT
CHIEF
Counternntelligence and Export Control
Section
Mational Security Division
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, NW
Washington, DO 20530
[Ninais Bar No. 6187361
Tel: 204-233-0986
Crmatl: jay. brate2icusdo). gov

13



Case 9:22-mj-08332-BER Document 102-3 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/26/2022 Page 1 of 3

Exhibit B



Case 9:22-mj-08332-BER Document 102-3 Entered on FLSD Docket 08/26/2022 Page 2 of 3

ATTACHMENT

TA H. Paragraph | Reas on(sjﬁf_'with holding _ ] B _j
Prefatory Agent safety
language | ___ _

13 | I
14 | Asgent safety e
Heading above | [

126
126
27
{28
(129
| 3[’]
3]

132
1433
134

35

36
137
(138
<39

Y40
141

142

143
o 4
45
146
148
Heading above
1 4%
49

4 50

Headin_é above
T 51
v 5]
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Iy 52

3
154

61

"Heading above
162

1 63

{64

165

166

167

e

69

70

Rki

;in;rg

b Bl e B Bl |
o2 Bl R N ) Y O LY

Agent

signature |

Agent safety
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